
Minutes September24, 2001 http://www.portolympia.com/Commission/Minutes_2001/Septemb...

1 of 6 5/4/07 11:43 AM

N
P O R T  O F  O L Y M P I A  C O M M I S S I O N
M I N U T E S  O F  R E G U L A R  M E E T I N G

 
September 24, 2001

 
 
CALL TO ORDER
 
President Pottle called the meeting of September 24, 2001, to order at 5:33 p.m. at the Port of Olympia in the Port
Conference Room.  Commissioner Dickison and Van Schoorl were in attendance.  
 
Staff in attendance were: Executive Director Nick Handy, Administrative Manager Jeri Sevier, Finance Director George
Fox, Engineering and Planning Director Andrea Fontenot, Cascade Pole Site Manager Don Bache, Swantown Marina and
Boatworks Manager Bruce Marshall, Marine Terminal Manager John Wolfe, Olympia Regional Airport Manager Doug
Sandau, and Facilities Project Engineer Rod Hudson.
 
Public in attendance were as follows. Representing the Olympian was reporter Scott Wyland.  Representing Legal Counsel 
was Mick Phillips.  Others in attendance included Bob Droll, Landscape Architect; Paul Telford; Harold Chambers; Arnie
and Shirley Olson; Jeffery Jaksich; Bob Martin; Steve Wilcox; Keith Bausch; Trace Fitzer, and Chad Gilliardi. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
 
The agenda was approved with the addition to the action calendar of Resolution 2001-10 regarding authorizing membership
with the Washington Government Entity Pool for the purpose of providing liability and property insurance to the Port.  In
addition, Executive Director Nick Handy asked that the Marine Terminal presentation be moved ahead on the calendar as
the guest in attendance need to get back to Canada tonight.
 
Commissioner Dickison asked for a discussion under other business on the possibility of a budget retreat of the
Commission. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT
 
Harold Chambers inquired whether the Port has given thought to changing the Commission meeting to a time and date to
accommodate people from the out lying areas in the county.  President Pottle responded that the Commission has held 
meetings at other times and held meetings throughout the county and will take the suggestion under advisement.
 
COMMISSIONERS REPORTS
 
President Pottle indicated he just returned from an EDC meeting where they announced that Home Depot signed a purchase
agreement for 44 acres in Meridian Campus for a distribution center that will employ about 200 workers.  This site is also 
in the Foreign Trade Zone.
 
President Pottle also reported that he has been contacted by Chris Michalak, President of the Washington State Air Show
asking to come before Commission in as an advisory asking for Commission support for the Air Show.  This proposed 
Air Show is a different concept that what was held before.  President Pottle asked Mr. Handy to contact Chris to set a time 
at the next Commission meeting.
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT
 
Mr. Nick Handy reported on several issues for Commission consideration.  Mr. Handy indicated staff has been working on
the development of the budget and are proceeding with the assumption to present the budget for the first time in public
session on October 8th.  In addition, the budget will be presented for public hearings on November 12th and scheduled for a
hearing and adoption on November 28th. 
 
Mr. Handy also requested the Commission schedule an Executive Session for a briefing on Cascade Pole discussing



Minutes September24, 2001 http://www.portolympia.com/Commission/Minutes_2001/Septemb...

2 of 6 5/4/07 11:43 AM

contract claims and legal issues with legal counsel on the Cascade Pole contract.  Staff and counsel need to confer with
Commission.  The Executive Session was scheduled for Tuesday, September 25th at 5:00 at the Port.  Mr. Handy 
requested the Commission adjourn the meeting tonight to the executive session.
 
Mr. Handy noted the tragic events of Sept. 11th have not created any security issues at the Port although the Port continues
to be on heightened awareness at the marine terminal and airport.  The Port staff have been getting daily directives from the
FAA regarding security and operational matters. 
 
Mr. Handy announced to the Commission that a PAC meeting is scheduled for October 11th at 7:00 p.m. at the Port and 
the agenda will be a general update to the PAC.  There is a PSPG meeting October 12th at Seatac.  The main item of 
discussion is the Port/Tribal conference. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR
 
The Consent Calendar was unanimously approved as follows.
 
Minutes.  The minutes from August 27, 2001 were unanimously approved as presented.
 
Bills and Vouchers.  The Commission unanimously approved the bills and vouchers for the period ending September 24,
2001 in the amount of $648,510.39.  General Fund Warrants Issued. 
022387-022391,022392-022408,022409-022411,022412-022465,022468,022469-022471,022472-022473,022474-022520,022521-022523,
022524-022542,022543-022549,022550-022584,022585-022591,022592-022639,022640-022646,022647,022648,022649-022655,022656-022672,022673-022675,022676-022729,022731
Voided Warrants:  022466-022467,V10004-V10005,022730.
 
Capital Project Expenditure Approval.  The Commission unanimously approved the capital project expenditure listing
in the amount of $574,137.12 for the golf netting extension, cascade pole and the Market Centre off-site parking lot.
 
ACTION CALENDAR
 
East Bay Viewing Platforms
 
Mr. Jeff Jaksich, representative from the East Bay Neighborhood Association, and David Hanna, representative of the City
of Olympia, gave the Commission a presentation on the Association’s plan to install viewing platforms of the Port along
East Bay Drive.
 
The platforms would be jointly coordinated and developed with the City of Olympia, Department of Natural Resources,
and the neighborhood association.  The association would like to add the Port of Olympia as a partner on this project.
 
The land is owned by the Department of Natural Resources.  The proposal would be for the DNR to lease the land at a
nominal rate to the City of Olympia.  Through a variety of funding means, a series of platforms would be developed
providing views of East Bay, the Olympics, the state Capital as well as Swantown Marina and Boatworks, and other Port
properties and operations.
 
The Association is proposing an application for a LEA grant as well as asking the Port to fund one of the view areas. 
There are five planned, the Port funded one would be used as a match for the LEA grant for a second one.  Mr. Jaksich 
indicated the budget request is for both viewing platforms are $35,500, the Association is asking the Port for $17,750.  He 
indicated there is no obligation of city money for this project.  In the past, the Port and the City jointly funded the 
project. 
 
Commissioner Dickison indicated he is very supportive of the project and would like to look at ways to fund it.  He 
would like to have Port staff look at engineering design instead of paying city staff and would also like to consider this as
a capital project and possibly funding over two years.  Commissioner Dickison indicated this request would be considered 
in the context of our Capital Project Listing for 2002. 
 
The Commission advised staff the matter should be considered in the development of the 2002 capital budget.
 
Port Plaza Design Approval
 



Minutes September24, 2001 http://www.portolympia.com/Commission/Minutes_2001/Septemb...

3 of 6 5/4/07 11:43 AM

Mr. Nick Handy provided the Commission with a brief history of the Port Plaza design and development.  He indicated 
staff brought a modified design to the Commission in August that responded to the concern about cost and maximizing
the space for events.  At the Commission meeting in August there was a discussion about whether the facility could host
major concert events.  Staff has brought in a concert promotor for consultation and outlined 3 design alternatives that
illustrate different levels of accommodating concert venues.  Staff planned to present these alternatives at the Commission
meeting and answer questions. 
 
Mr. Handy introduced Mr. Bob Droll, Landscape Architect, who has been actively working on the design of the plaza since
conception in 1997.  Mr. Droll reviewed with the Commission alternatives one, two and three that considered large concert
venues.   Mr. Droll indicated they are designing for flexibility.  Alternative number one would accommodate up to 1500 
people in a concert venue.  Alternative number two would accommodate approximately 1850 seats.  You could also add 
bleacher seating on the outside perimeter.  Alternative number three would accommodate about 2700 seats. 
 
Greg Coe, Seattle Theatre Group, spoke as an individual to answer questions and give ideas.  Mr. Co encouraged the
Commission as to identify the goal  for this project, whether it is to increase revenues, provide community and public
enhancements.  There is a window of time for outdoor events due to the weather in the Northwest.  The need exists to 
identify goals and set forth policies and procedures for meeting those goals.  There are also other issues involved with
holding outdoor events. 
 
Commissioner Dickison asked what the sizes of these venues would bring.  Mr. Coe indicated the larger scale would give
more opportunities, however there are only so many dates in the summer months that are available.  If you build for the 
largest possible number, you loose a design to accommodate other venues on those days not being used as a concert
venue.  Mr. Coe suggested the Commission consider Alternative one or two giving the most flexibility for all types of
venues.  He indicated that bigger is not always better.   However, the goal of the Commission needs to be identified. 
 
Commissioner Van Schoorl asked about Alternative 1 and the possibility of bringing in the bleacher seating.  Commission 
Pottle indicated he still sees this venue for events we have held in the past as well as events in the future.  These 
alternatives provide flexibility for all kinds of events. 
 
A question from the audience asking how many cars would a concert of 1000 people bring in.  Mr. Coe indicated the
promoter of the event can promote car pooling or other transportation services.  It comes down to how the events are
pursued.  Mr. Droll indicated people going to concerts and leisure events usually go in groups at a ratio of 2.5 to 4 per
car. 
 
Mr. Handy indicated the staff recommendation was for Alternative 1 that would give the most flexibility for all kinds of
events and still maintain the character of the site.  Staff is asking the Commission for a decision on the final design
alternative.   Commissioner Van Schoorl indicated his preference was for alternative one, however, alternative two allows
staging larger events.  Commissioner Dickison indicated he liked some of the features of alternative one, the bench seating,
creating edge effect along the shoreline, and having the grassy areas and benches.  In terms of seating he is comfortable 
with the 1500 range.  He would like 1.5 alternative, featuring a little of both. 
 
Commissioner Pottle indicated the direction of the Commission is for alternative 1 and 2 combined.  Commissioner 
Dickison indicated the main difference was the raised area in the back versus not having a raised level.  The 
Commissioners indicated they liked the raised level.  The bench seating by the water is also important.   Mr. Droll
indicated he would re-work the drawing to accommodate a combination of one and two. 
 
Resolution 2001-10 – Authorizing membership with the Washington Government Entity Pool for Insurance
 
Mr. George Fox presented the Commission with Resolution 2001-10 that would authorize membership with the
Washington Government Entity Pool for Insurance. 
 
Mr. Fox advised the Port is faced with an insurance renewal in October and it is the worst insurance market of all time. 
On Friday, there was a meeting of the Port’s group getting a quote from the AON group for the insurance pools.  The 
premiums quoted at $250,000, twice as much as last year.  Knowing of the increase in rates, Mr. Fox indicated he has
been looking at joining a Washington Government Entity Pool for insurance.  The quote from WGEP is for $180,000. 
Mr. Fox will get a quote from AON on Thursday this week and need to have a decision by Friday, as the coverage ends
September 30. 
 
This resolution authorized the Finance Director to make a decision as to what membership pool the Port would belong to. 
The WGEP consists of many governmental agencies in Washington.  Of those, 33 medium to smaller Ports belong to the



Minutes September24, 2001 http://www.portolympia.com/Commission/Minutes_2001/Septemb...

4 of 6 5/4/07 11:43 AM

WGEP. 
 
Commissioner Van School asked what happens if the reserve is used up for a natural disaster in the area.  Everything over 
200,000 is re-insuranced out to a level of 50 million.  The Port would not just be relying on the reserve.  Mr. Mick
Phillips, legal counsel, indicated his experience has been that WPEG is a reliable and successful pool. 
 
The Commission unanimously approved Resolution 2001-10 authorizing membership with the Washington Government
Entity Pool for Insurance.   
 
ADVISORY CALENDAR
 
Cascade Pole Construction Update Advisory
 
Mr. Rod Hudson provided the Commission with an update on the progress of the Cascade Pole sediment remediation
project.  To date about 15 percent of the project has been paid out of the $3.3 million project.
7,500 yards of the materials has been excavated out of the 35,000 estimated amount to be excavated.  The Port has made 
some adjustments to the excavation due to the problems with the Gunderboom curtain.  The Port is hoping to have the
improvements made to the Gunderboom by October 1st, during the time waiting for the repairs we have had some delays. 
The contractor has been doing some night work to gain time lost.  The Port has been monitoring sound around the area
and are under the required levels.  The night work has been going well.  We have also informed local residents around the
area as to the work that is being done.  The Port is still planning to close the project up in December.   Commissioner 
Dickison asked about the permit deadlines.  Mr. Bache responded the deadlines are February 15 and contract completion
date is December 15th. 
 
Marine Terminal New Cargo Advisory
 
Mr. John Wolfe indicated he has been in discussion with a new customer for business at the Port of Olympia.   Transport 
Systems, LLC is interested in bringing bulk cargo by barge to the Port of Olympia.  David Slater, President of Hillsboro 
Resources, gave the Commission a presentation on his business and invited the Commission to visit the coal plant in
Canada.  Mr. Slater indicated his company is bidding a coal supply to WSU in Pullman and interested in the Port of
Olympia as the transport center for this product.  The coal is a washed product and very little dust associated with it, he
shared samples of the coal.  Mr. Slater expects to hear within the next 10 days as to whether they are successful in the bid. 
His company would look forward to using the Port of Olympia for transporting this product. 
 
Commission Van School asked how much coal the bid was for.  Mr. Slater responded that the bid was for a minimum of
24,000 tons per year as a beginning operation, however, it could be expanded to as much as 150,000 ton per year.
 
Trace Fitzer and Chad Gilliardi from Transport Services answered questions from the Commission.  They explained the
barge would off load by conveyer belt to the Port location and then be screened to size, then re-loaded onto truck and rail. 
They indicated they have met with the longshoremen here and the Port and have been trying to find more demand for the
coal in Western Washington.  The Port is a perfect location for this service.  Mr. Fitzer indicated they have already 
obtained permits from the Department of Ecology and have advertised in the local paper.  They reported there have not 
been any obstacles in the process. 
 
Commissioner Dickison asked if the process for screening and stockpiling would be in a covered area or in the open.  Mr. 
Gilliardi indicated for the most part the stockpiling would be in the open.  Mr. Wolfe indicated the Port is envisioning a
covered conveyer, stock piling the product into a blocked area.  Mr. Gilliardi reported that they also think there is a huge
demand for aggregate and bark, and they are looking at also bringing in those products as well. 
 
Air Service Public Outreach Process
 
Mr. Handy indicated that prior to the September 11 terrorist attacks, the Port Commission directed staff to design a
community process  for obtaining public views on  Olympia air service.  A major feature of this outreach effort included an
initial  televised public workshop/ hearing, with two objectives:  to educate and inform the public about the Olympia
Regional Airport and air service possibilities; and to seek community input and feedback on recruiting air service at
Olympia Regional Airport. 
 
Since September 11, major federal initiatives relating to aircraft and airport operations, security and safety are in the
making. While we expect to know more about new requirements at Olympia Regional Airport within the week, we are not



Minutes September24, 2001 http://www.portolympia.com/Commission/Minutes_2001/Septemb...

5 of 6 5/4/07 11:43 AM

certain that guidance will be definitive.
 
Mr. Handy indicated that given the events of the last week and a half, we look for Commission guidance about how best
to proceed with the outreach plan for bringing air service to Olympia. Issues bearing on this process include prospective
additional security /safety  measures, changed market conditions in the short and long term, and community sensitivities
in response to our national tragedy. 
 
Commissioner Van Schoorl indicated his preference is to move forward with the original plan to look towards the future. 
Commissioner Dickison responded that under the original timetable, we were expecting a visit from Big Sky and to have
information that would warrant a public strategy.  Commissioner Dickison asked that since Big Sky has postponed their
visit, what is the expectation of having all of the information necessary to hold the public meetings. 
 
Mr. Doug Sandau, indicated that staff is continually in contact with FAA, they still are unable to give us the full
implications of how the airport and air service may be affected.  We are not sure what issues we will need to address and 
what those issues might be. 
 
Commissioner Dickison said we are not in a position at this point to provide the community the information that may be
needed at this point.  Commissioner Pottle indicated his preference is for staff to continue to do our due diligence and
continue to encourage Big Sky to visit and continue discussions.  However, Commissioner Pottle does not feel that we 
will have the needed information by the October 22nd date for the public hearing.  He suggested the Port go at this in a
cautious manner, and when we have ducks in a row, continue with the schedule.  Commissioner Van Schoorl thought the
public hearings were to engage the public in what it will take in this community to make air service successful.  We need 
to get the community fully engaged in this process regardless of the issues. 
 
Mr. Sandau indicated he has talked to the travel agent about the reduced interest in flying.  Commissioner Pottle asked 
Mr. Sandau for his advice on how to move forward in the project.  The elements we were planning on discussing will not
change.  Mr. Handy asked if this was the time we would like to engage the community in this discussion. 
 
Mrs. Shirley Olson, a member of the public, indicated she would like the Port to engage the community in this process as
soon as possible.  She said the Port needs to put more confidence in the community and hear from them. 
 
The Commission responded that they were willing to move forward with the schedule.  Commissioner Dickison indicated
we need to have a question and answer format to the questions.  President Pottle asked staff to be proactive with radio
stations, newspapers and go all out to engage the public in this workshop.  Then he noted that the second step is to follow
through so the community knows when this will be televised.  
 
Other Business:  Commissioner Dickison indicated his concern about the budget process and presentation to the
Commission on October 8th and the Commissioners not having a chance to discuss the budget prior to the presentation. 
He said he thought the process last year was very helpful and thinks there are a number of policy issues that need guidance
and asked the commission to reconsider the budget schedule allowing the Commission an opportunity to give guidance to
the staff before a prepared budget is presented at a public meeting.
 
Commissioner Van Schoorl indicated he just completed a budget briefing with Mr. Handy and Mr. Fox.  He encouraged 
the other Commissioners to have those briefings as well.  Commissioner Dickison suggested we make the October 8th

meeting into a work session and a short meeting for business.  Commissioner Dickison recommended the Commission
schedule another meeting on October 15th that would be the public presentation of the budget.  The Commission agreed 
with his suggestion.
 
ADJOURNMENT
 
President Pottle adjourned the meeting of September 24, 2001 at  8:33 p.m. to executive session at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday,
September 25th to confer with legal counsel regarding contractor claims and potential litigation relating to Cascade Pole.
 
At 5:12 pm on Tuesday, September 25, 2001, in the Port large conference room, Commissioner Pottle reconvened the Port
Commission meeting in executive session.  Attending the executive session were all three Port Commissioners, legal
counsel Mick Phillips and Mike Mayberry representing Owens Davies law firm, Nick Handy, Andrea Fontenot, Don
Bache, Rod Hudson, and Larry Beard, consultant representing Landau.  The Commission conferred with legal counsel and
staff on legal matters relating to contractor claims in the Cascade Pole contract. 
 



Minutes September24, 2001 http://www.portolympia.com/Commission/Minutes_2001/Septemb...

6 of 6 5/4/07 11:43 AM

Commissioner Pottle adjourned the meeting at 7:03 pm.
 
 

PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSION
 

                                                                                               
President

 
                                                                                               

Vice President
 

                                                                                               
Secretary-Treasurer


